
COUNTY OF ALBANY 
EC ONOMI C  DEVELOP MENT,  CONSERVATI ON AND PLANNI NG 

STAGE ACT COMMITTEE MEETING 

Friday, July 11, 2025, at 10:00 AM 
111 Washington Ave, Suite 100, Albany, New York, 12210 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call Kevin O’Connor 

2. Review of Meeting Minutes – February 14, 2025 Kevin O’Connor

Kevin Catalano 

Thomas Owens, Esq. 

Kevin O’Connor  

3. STAGE Application
a. Crane Stationary

i. Crane – Review Checklist
ii. SEAF Part I & II

iii. (action) Resolution 2025-07-01
b. Atlas Copco Modification

i. (action) Resolution 2025-07-02

4. Status of STAGE Program

5. Public Comment

6. Adjournment
Kevin O’Connor 

DANIEL P. MCCOY 
COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

KEVIN O’CONNOR 
DIRECTOR 

 MICHAEL MCLAUGHLIN 
DEPUTY COUNTY EXECUTIVE 



COUNTY OF ALBANY 
EC ONOMI C  DEVELOP MENT,  CONSERVATI ON AND PLANNI NG 

STAGE ACT COMMITTEE MEETING 

Friday, July 11, 2025, at 10:00 AM 
111 Washington Ave, Suite 100, Albany, New York, 12210 

ROLL CALL 

Committee Member Present / Excused / Absent 

Dave Reilly, Albany County Commissioner of 
Management & Budget 

Susan Rizzo, Albany County Comptroller 

Hon. William Reinhardt, Chair of 
Conservation, Sustainability, & Green 
Initiatives Committee 
Hon. Gary Domalewicz, Chair of Economic 
Development Committee of Albany County 
Legislature 
Michael McLaughlin, Albany County Deputy 
Executive 

DANIEL P. MCCOY 
COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

KEVIN O’CONNOR 
DIRECTOR 

 MICHAEL MCLAUGHLIN 
DEPUTY COUNTY EXECUTIVE 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAGE ACT COMMITTEE  
FEBRUARY 14, 2025, 11:00 am.  

MEETING MINUTES 
 

A meeting of the STAGE Act Committee was held on Friday, February 14, 2025, at 111 
Washington Ave, Suite 100, Albany, NY 12210. Members of the public were able to attend the 
meeting by attending in person.  Additionally, the meeting was live-streamed on the publicly 
accessible Advance Albany County Alliance YouTube channel.  
 
The following Committee Members were present at, and participated in, the meeting: 
 - Hon. Susan Rizzo, Albany County Comptroller  

- David Reilly, Commissioner of the Division of Management & Budget 
- Michael McLaughlin, Deputy County Executive (as designee of the County Executive) 

  
Members excused:  

- Hon. Gary Domalewicz, Albany County Legislature 
- Hon. William Reinhardt, Albany County Legislature  

Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development Corporation (“AACA”) LDC Staff 
Present: 

- Kevin O’Connor, Director of Economic Development, Albany County and CEO 
- Kevin Catalano, Senior Vice-President & Director of Commercial Lending 

 - Sara Paulsen, Executive Assistant 
 - Antionette Hedge, Economic Development Coordinator 
 - Thomas M. Owens, Esq., AACA Counsel 
 
Also present at the meeting: 

- None 
 

Call to Order 
 

The meeting was called to order at 11:04 am. 
 

Roll Call 
 

Roll was called, and it was noted that a quorum was present.  
 
 

Review Meeting Minutes 

DANIEL P. MCCOY 
COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

 
KEVIN O’CONNOR 

DIRECTOR 
 
 

 
COUNTY OF ALBANY 

EC ONOMI C  DEVELOP MENT,  CONSERVATI ON AND PLANNI NG 
1 1 1  W A S H I N G T O N  A V E ,  S U I T E  1 0 0  
ALBANY,  NEW YORK  1 22 1 0 

(5 1 8 )  4 4 7 -5 6 02   

MICHAEL MCLAUGHLIN 
DEPUTY COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

 



 
Mr. O’Connor asked if the committee reviewed the minutes from December 11, 2024. There 
were no questions or amendments to the minutes; a motion was made by Ms. Rizzo to approve 
the December 11, 2024 Meeting Minutes, seconded by Mr. Riley and approved pursuant to a 
unanimous vote. 
 

Applications 
 

1. Philips Medical Systems MR, Inc.: Philips Medical Systems MR, Inc. submitted an 
application requesting STAGE Grant funds to increase the utility infrastructure for higher 
capacity electric supply to be brought to their Albany County-based manufacturing and 
research facility. Without an electrical supply increase, Philips Medical will be 
constrained in their future growth plans. The project/application specifics include: 

Applicant:    Philips Medical Systems MR, Inc. 
Grant Funds Requested:  $1,500,000 
Project:  Increase utility infrastructure for higher 

capacity electric supply for the Applicant’s 
Latham facility 

Eligibility Category:  Industrial and Manufacturing Facility & 
Healthcare / Life sciences. 

Jobs Created:  20 FT (1 skilled, 14 semi- skilled, 5 
unskilled)     

Jobs Retained:   120 jobs 
Investment in County:  >$15,510,00 
Reviewing Criteria Score:  17 points (out of 22 max) 
AACA Recommended Funding Level: $1,410,000 
 

Resolution No. 2025-02-01 
Following discussion of the specifics of the Philips Medical Systems MR, Inc. application, 
Resolution 2025-02-01, upon a motion made by Ms. Rizzo to approve, seconded by Mr. 
McLaughlin was approved pursuant to a unanimous vote. 

      
2. NSH USA Corporation: NSH USA Corp. submitted an application for the expansion of 

NSH USA Corporation’s production facility at 55 Broadway, Menands, NY 12204, 
which specializes in the manufacturing of specialized and multifunction machines for 
railway, automotive, aerospace, and other industrial manufacturers. The 
project/application specifics include: 

Applicant:    NSH USA Corporation 
Grant Funds Requested:  $908,000 
Project:  New 18,000 state-of-the-art manufacturing 

facility at their Menands NY facility to 
house a 40 ton capacity overhead crane and 
lead to 15 additional job at the site. 

Eligibility Category:  Industrial and Manufacturing Facility used 
to create parts and products for public and 
commercial rail transportation. 



Jobs Created:  15   
Jobs Retained:   122 
Investment in County:  $9,080,000 (does not include land 

acquisition and demolition of the structure 
previously on the site. Total project and 
investment will exceed $15 million when 
complete) 

Reviewing Criteria Score:  16 points (out of 22 max) 
AACA Recommended Funding Level: $ 908,000 
 

Resolution No. 2025-02-02 
Following discussion of the specifics of the NSH USA Corp. application, Resolution 2025-02-
02, upon a motion made by Mr. Reilly to approve, seconded by Ms. Rizzo was approved 
pursuant to a unanimous vote. 
 
 

Application Updates 
 

None. 
 

Public Comment 
 

None. 
 

Adjournment  
 
A motion made by Ms. Rizzo to adjourn the meeting at 11:26 am. seconded by Mr. Reilly and 
approved pursuant to a unanimous vote. 







Part V. Funding Request 
Grant amounts will be determined based on project need and impact and are made at the discretion of the Alliance and County. Grant amounts will 
be capped based on job creation and retention commitments as follows: 

• Grants in an amount up to $250,000 may be provided for projects that generate or retain fewer than 50 FTE jobs in a five-year period.
• Grants in an amount up to $1 million may be provided for projects that generate or retain between 50 and 200 FTE jobs in a five-year period.
• Grants in an amount up to $3 million may be provided for projects that generate or retain more than 200 FTE jobs in a five-year period.

Grant Amount Requested*: _$5 4 ,400.00_ Total Cost of Project: $   5  9 8 , 4 _0_0 _.o_o ____ _ Would this project proceed in 

Albany County without a STAGE Grant? l!J Yes □ No 

Are you considering other locations for this project outside of Albany County? □ Yes l!J No 

Describe why grant funding is needed to advance this project and what grant funds will support: 
The funding will be used to help us reach our goals of moving into a much more sustainable building, improving our 

effeciencies and improving company morale. We will di rectly be using the funds to pay for improving our 

facility, moving expenses and purchasing new equipment. 

*Applicants will be asked to complete Economic Impact Studies for awards greater than $500,000.

STAGE Grants are primarily reimbursement based. Is any upfront funding necessary to advance this project? □ Yes l!J No 

If yes, please explain why:------------ -----------------------

Part VI. Alignment with County Priorities 
Please describe how the project aligns with the Albany County Strategic Economic Development Report and/or the ST AGE Act: 
Crane Stationery is proud to support Albany County through our commitment to sustainable, 

environmentally responsible production. By exclusively using 100% cotton paper-a renewable byproduct 1 

of the textile industry rather than tree-based pulp-we help reduce deforestation and lower the region's 

carbon footprint. Our new facility in Latham furthers this mission with energy-efficient infrastructure, 

reduced waste, and modern equipment designed for minimal environmertal impact. As a manufacturer 

rooted in craftsmanship and sustainability, we are dedicated to contributing to a cleaner, greener Albany 

and those of the community we're proud to call home. 

Albany County Sustainable Technology & Green Energy Grant Program Application 



















Page 1 of 3 

Short Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 1 - Project Information 

Instructions for Completing 

Part 1 – Project Information.  The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1.  Responses become part of the 
application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification.  Complete Part 1 based on 
information currently available.  If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as 
thoroughly as possible based on current information. 

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful to the 
lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item. 

Part 1 – Project and Sponsor Information 

Name of Action or Project: 

Project Location (describe, and attach a location map): 

Brief Description of Proposed Action: 

Name of Applicant or Sponsor: Telephone: 

E-Mail:
Address: 

City/PO: State: Zip Code: 

1. Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinance,
administrative rule, or regulation?

If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the environmental resources that 
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2.  If no, continue to question 2. 

NO YES 

2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other government Agency?
If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval:

NO YES 

3. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action?     __________ acres 
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed?     __________ acres 
c. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor?     __________ acres 

4. Check all land uses that occur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action:

Rural (non-agriculture)       Industrial        Commercial        Residential (suburban) 

 Aquatic   Other(Specify):Agriculture

□  Urban

□  Forest 

SEAF 2019

Parkland

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90156.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90178.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90533.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90533.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90380.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90372.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90390.html


Page 2 of 3 

5. Is the proposed action,

a. A permitted use under the zoning regulations?

b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?

NO YES N/A 

6. Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural landscape?
NO YES 

7. Is the site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?

If Yes, identify: ________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

8. a.    Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels?

b. Are public transportation services available at or near the site of the proposed action?

c. Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near the site of the proposed
action?

NO YES 

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements?

If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

NO YES 

10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply?

If No, describe method for providing potable water: _________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

11. Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities?

If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment: ______________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

NO YES 

13. a.   Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or lands adjoining the proposed action, contain
wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?

If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres: _____________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

12. a. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district
which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the
Commissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the
State Register of Historic Places?

b. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90444.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90444.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90449.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90454.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90470.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90492.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90497.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90507.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90517.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90517.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90512.html


Page 3 of 3 

14. Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:

□Shoreline     □ Forest       Agricultural/grasslands        Early mid-successional

Wetland       □ Urban       Suburban 

15. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or associated habitats, listed by the State or
Federal government as threatened or endangered?

NO YES 

16. Is the project site located in the 100-year flood plan? NO YES 

17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources?
If Yes,

a. Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?

b. Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?
If Yes, briefly describe: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of water
or other liquids (e.g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?

If Yes, explain the purpose and size of the impoundment:______________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________

_ 

NO YES 

19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the location of an active or closed solid waste
management facility?

If Yes, describe: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

20.Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (ongoing or
completed)            for hazardous waste?
If Yes, describe: _______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

NO YES 

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF 
MY KNOWLEDGE 

    Date: _____________________ Applicant/sponsor/name: ____________________________________________________ __________________________   

Signature: _____________________________________________________Title:__________________________________

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90194.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90545.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90545.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90565.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90575.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90580.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90580.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90585.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90585.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90590.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90590.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90595.html


Page 1 of 2 

            Agency Use Only [If applicable]

Project:

Date:

Short Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 2 - Impact Assessment

Part 2 is to be completed by the Lead Agency.
Answer all of the following questions in Part 2 using the information contained in Part 1 and other materials submitted by 

the project sponsor or otherwise available to the reviewer.  When answering the questions the reviewer should be guided by 

the concept “Have my responses been reasonable considering the scale and context of the proposed action?”    

No, or  

small 

impact 

may 

occur   

Moderate 

to large 

impact 

may 

occur 

1.  Will the proposed action create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan or zoning

regulations?

2. Will the proposed action result in a change in the use or intensity of use of land?

3. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of the existing community?

4. Will the proposed action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the

establishment of a Critical Environmental Area (CEA)?

5. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or

affect existing infrastructure for mass transit, biking or walkway?

6. Will the proposed action cause an increase in the use of energy and it fails to incorporate
reasonably available energy conservation or renewable energy opportunities?

7. Will the proposed action impact existing:
a. public / private water supplies?

b. public / private wastewater treatment utilities?

8. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of important historic, archaeological,
architectural or aesthetic resources?

9. Will the proposed action  result in an adverse change to natural resources (e.g., wetlands,
waterbodies, groundwater, air quality, flora and fauna)?

10. Will the proposed action  result in an  increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage

problems?

11. Will the proposed action create a hazard to environmental resources or human health?

SEAF 2019

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90161.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91098.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91098.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91103.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91399.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91404.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91404.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91414.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91414.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91419.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91419.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91424.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91429.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91429.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91434.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91434.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91439.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91439.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91444.html


Page 2 of 2 

For every question in Part 2 that was answered “moderate to large impact may occur”, or if there is a need to explain why a 

particular element of the proposed action may or will not result in a significant adverse environmental impact, please 

complete Part 3. Part 3 should, in sufficient detail, identify the impact, including any measures or design elements that 

have been included by the project sponsor to avoid or reduce impacts.  Part 3 should also explain how the lead agency 

determined that the impact may or will not be significant. Each potential impact should be assessed considering its setting, 

probability of occurring, duration, irreversibility, geographic scope and magnitude.  Also consider the potential for short-

term, long-term and cumulative impacts. 

Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,  
that the  proposed  action  may  result in one or more potentially large or significant adverse impacts and an 

environmental impact statement is required. 

Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation, 
that the proposed action will not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts. 

_________________________________________________ _______________________________________________ 

Name of Lead Agency Date 

_________________________________________________ _______________________________________________ 

 Print or Type Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Title of Responsible Officer 

_________________________________________________ _______________________________________________ 

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer) 

Short Environmental Assessment Form 
Part 3 Determination of Significance

        Agency Use Only [If applicable]
Project:

Date:

http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/90166.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91450.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91450.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91455.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91455.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91460.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91450.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91450.html
http://www.dec.ny.gov/permits/91460.html


RESOLUTION 2025-07-01 
OF THE 

ALBANY COUNTY STAGE ACT COMMITTEE 

  
A meeting of the STAGE ACT Committee (“STAGE Committee”) was convened 

in public session at the offices of Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development 
Corporation located at 111 Washington Avenue (Suite 100), Albany, New York, 12210 
on Wednesday, July 11, 2025 at 10:00am. 

 
The meeting was convened by the Director of the Albany County Department of 

Economic Development on not less than 72 hours’ notice, with the following STAGE 
Committee members present: 

 
1. Commissioner of the Division of Management and Budget Dave Reilly (or 

Designee); 
2. Albany County Comptroller Susan Rizzo (or Designee); 
3. Albany County Executive (or Designee; 
4. Chairperson of the Conservation, Sustainability & Green Initiatives 

Committee of the Albany County Legislature; and 
5. Chairperson of the Economic Development Committee of the Albany County 

Legislature. 
 
The STAGE Committee meeting was convened pursuant to and in accordance 

with the Sustainable Technology and Green Energy Plan (“STAGE Plan”) for the 
Committee to review, evaluate, consider for approval certain economic development 
projects and if approved, determine funding amounts for such approved economic 
development projects all in accordance with the STAGE Plan. 
 
 Other individuals present included: 

1. Kevin O’Connor, Advance Albany County Alliance LDC (“AACA”) CEO 
2. Kevin Catalano, AACA VP 
3. INSERT OTHERS 
 
The following resolution was offered by Committee Member ______________, 

seconded by Committee Member ___________________, and voted on by the 
Committee: 

 
Resolution No. 2025-07-01 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND DETERMINING FUNDING FOR AN 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY  
DECREE-CRANE SPECIAL PAPERS NA, LLC (CRANE STATIONARY) 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND PURSUANT TO THE STAGE PLAN 
 

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2022 the Albany County Legislature enacted Local Law 
1 for 2022 “ESTABLISHING THE SUSTAINABLE TECHNOLOGY AND GREEN 
ENERGY ACT (STAGE ACT)”; and 

 



WHEREAS, the findings of the Albany County Legislative contained within the 
STAGE ACT include: 

 
- In 2019, the State of New York enacted the Climate Leadership and 

Community Protection Act (“CLCPA”), thereby creating one of the most 
ambitious and comprehensive climate and energy laws in the country. The 
CLCPA calls for nothing less than the decarbonization of the NYS economy 
and calls on each and every municipality in the state to collaboratively work 
to significantly increase the green energy business infrastructure in their 
municipalities to the greatest extent possible. New York has set aggressive 
goals through the CLCPA, and has established a target of reaching a point 
where no less than 70% of the state’s electricity consumption will be derived 
from renewable power generation by the year 2030; and 
 

- Local municipalities are uniquely situated to address the climate goals noted 
in the CLCPA through local economic development efforts, which prioritize 
the shift towards clean renewable energy systems and green business that will 
fuel our economy in the next century. Through collaborative efforts amongst 
neighboring municipalities, and local economic development agencies, 
Albany County intends to provide the resources through which business can 
find a partner in the fight for a healthier environment that brings long term job 
investment and employment to our community; and 

 
- As national, state, and local governments emerged from the COVID-19 

pandemic, the need for an economy driven by green economic development 
has become more apparent than ever. Only through sustainable investment in 
long-term clean energy businesses can we hope to stem the tide of decades of 
environmental devastation brought on by a much prolonged dependence on 
petroleum-based economies. The County Albany County Legislature 
determines that the County of Albany and its arms of municipal government 
can act as a promoter of this type of economic development and intends to 
commit significant resources to the development of green economic 
development projects across the County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the stated intention of the Albany County Legislature in the STAGE 

ACT is “to establish a Sustainable Technology and Green Energy Plan, which will 
invigorate and diversify the green business industry in the County of Albany for years to 
come and contribute to significant economic development, job retention, and 
development”; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to, and in accordance with the STAGE ACT, the 

Sustainable Technology & Green Energy Plan Rules and Regulations (“STAGE Plan”) 
was developed to: (1) address the climate protection goals codified by CLCPA; and (2) 
address the dual goals of creating economic opportunity and jobs for the residents of 
Albany County while decarbonizing the economy; and (3) further support Albany 
County’s Economic Development Strategy commissioned in 2019;  and  

 
WHEREAS, as part of the STAGE Plan, Advance Albany County Alliance Local 

Development Corporation (“AACA”) was identified by Albany County to administer and 



manage a grant program (“STAGE Act Grant Program”) with funds from Albany County 
to foster the development of green businesses in Albany County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as part of administering the STAGE Act Grant Program, AACA has 
developed and promulgated an application which can be completed/submitted by eligible 
green business applicants to AACA for review and potential approval by the AACA 
Board, and if such applications are approved by the AACA Board, such AACA approved 
applications are forwarded to the STAGE Committee for final review, approval and 
funding determination; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an application (the “Application”, attached hereto as Exhibit 1) was 
submitted to AACA by Decree-Crane Special Papers NA, LLC, and following AACA’s 
review of the applicant, Application, and the applicant’s project (“Project”) against the 
STAGE Plan’s eligibility requirements, the projected economic impact of such Project, 
eligible uses of STAGE Act Grant Program funds and the STAGE Plan’s awarding 
criteria, the AACA Board has approved the Application/Project be advanced to the 
STAGE Act Committee for final review, approval and funding determination: 

 
1. Applicant:    Decree-Crane Special Papers NA,  

  LLC (Crane Stationary) 
Grant Funds Requested:  $54,400 
Project:  Relocate to, and outfit, an existing 

building for the Applicant’s 
corporate headquarters, including its 
manufacturing operations 

Eligibility Category:   Industrial and Manufacturing; 
Commercial Facilities  

      Facility 
Jobs Created:    51 jobs 

(13 professional, 28 skilled, 
7 semi-skilled, 3 unskilled) 

Jobs Retained:  65 jobs 
  (21 professional, 33 skilled, 
  10 semi-skilled, 1 unskilled) 
Investment in County:  >$598,400 
Reviewing Criteria Score:  15 points (out of 22 max) 
Recommended Funding Level:  $54,400 
 
 

 WHEREAS, AACA recommends that the STAGE Committee approve and 
award STAGE Act Grant Program funding for the Project at the “AACA Recommended 
Funding Level” identified above; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the STAGE Committee has received a presentation from the AACA 
CEO on (1) the eligibility of the applicant and the Project under the STAGE Plan; (2) 
ACCA’s evaluation of the Project against the STAGE Plan’s scoring criteria (attached 
hereto as Exhibit 2)); and (3) AACA’s recommended funding level for the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 
Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”) and 



the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the 
“Regulations” and collectively with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), it appears that the Project 
constitutes a Type II action under SEQRA;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE MEMBERS OF THE 
STAGE COMMITTEE: 
 

SEQRA DETERMINATION 
 
 (1) Based upon an examination of the Application and Project, the STAGE 
Committee hereby makes the following determinations: (A) The Project constitutes a 
“Type II action” pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.5(c)(2), (18) and/or (31), and therefore that, 
pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.6(a)(1)(i), the STAGE Committee has no further 
responsibilities under SEQRA with respect to the Project. 
 

STAGE PLAN PROJECT APPROVAL AND FUNDING DETERMINATION 
 

 (1) The STAGE Committee approves the Project. 
 

 (2) Based on the Project’s demonstrated ability to show deliverables on job 
creation/retention, level of investment, project viability, and consistency with the County 
Economic Development Priorities, the STAGE Committee determines that $54,400 of the 
STAGE Act funding authorized in the Albany County Budget be awarded to the 
applicant for the Project pursuant to and in accordance with the STAGE Plan, with such 
STAGE Act Grant Program funding to be administered by AACA in accordance with and 
pursuant to the STAGE Plan. 

 
  
Dated: July 11, 2025 
       
Motion made by:  
 
Seconded by:   
 

Voting Results 
 

Committee Member Vote 
(Yes/No) 

Commissioner of the Division of Management and Budget (or Designee)  
Albany County Comptroller (or Designee)  
Albany County Executive (or Designee)_______________  
Chairperson of the Conservation, Sustainability & Green Initiatives Committee 
of the Albany County Legislature_________________ 

 

Chairperson of the Economic Development Committee of the Albany County 
Legislature________________ 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2025-07-02 
OF THE 

ALBANY COUNTY STAGE ACT COMMITTEE 

A meeting of the STAGE ACT Committee (“STAGE Committee”) was convened 
in public session at the offices of Advance Albany County Alliance Local Development 
Corporation located at 111 Washington Avenue (Suite 100), Albany, New York, 12210 
on Friday, July 11, 2025 at 10:00am. 

The meeting was convened by the Director of the Albany County Department of 
Economic Development on not less than 72 hours’ notice, with the following STAGE 
Committee members present: 

1. Commissioner of the Division of Management and Budget Dave Reilly (or
Designee);

2. Albany County Comptroller Susan Rizzo (or Designee);
3. Albany County Executive (or Designee;
4. Chairperson of the Conservation, Sustainability & Green Initiatives

Committee of the Albany County Legislature; and
5. Chairperson of the Economic Development Committee of the Albany County

Legislature.

The STAGE Committee meeting was convened pursuant to and in accordance 
with the Sustainable Technology and Green Energy Plan (“STAGE Plan”) for the 
Committee to review, evaluate, consider for approval certain economic development 
projects and if approved, determine funding amounts for such approved economic 
development projects all in accordance with the STAGE Plan. 

Other individuals present included: 
1. Kevin O’Connor, Advance Albany County Alliance LDC (“AACA”) CEO
2. Kevin Catalano, AACA VP
3. INSERT OTHERS

The following resolution was offered by Committee Member ______________, 
seconded by Committee Member ___________________, and voted on by the 
Committee: 

Resolution No. 2025-07-02 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND DETERMINING AN AMENDED FUNDING 
FOR AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY 

ALTAS COPCO COMPTEC, LLC IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND PURSUANT TO THE 
STAGE PLAN 

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2022 the Albany County Legislature enacted Local Law 
1 for 2022 “ESTABLISHING THE SUSTAINABLE TECHNOLOGY AND GREEN 
ENERGY ACT (STAGE ACT)”; and 



 
WHEREAS, the findings of the Albany County Legislative contained within the 

STAGE ACT include: 
 
- In 2019, the State of New York enacted the Climate Leadership and 

Community Protection Act (“CLCPA”), thereby creating one of the most 
ambitious and comprehensive climate and energy laws in the country. The 
CLCPA calls for nothing less than the decarbonization of the NYS economy 
and calls on each and every municipality in the state to collaboratively work 
to significantly increase the green energy business infrastructure in their 
municipalities to the greatest extent possible. New York has set aggressive 
goals through the CLCPA, and has established a target of reaching a point 
where no less than 70% of the state’s electricity consumption will be derived 
from renewable power generation by the year 2030; and 
 

- Local municipalities are uniquely situated to address the climate goals noted 
in the CLCPA through local economic development efforts, which prioritize 
the shift towards clean renewable energy systems and green business that will 
fuel our economy in the next century. Through collaborative efforts amongst 
neighboring municipalities, and local economic development agencies, 
Albany County intends to provide the resources through which business can 
find a partner in the fight for a healthier environment that brings long term job 
investment and employment to our community; and 

 
- As national, state, and local governments emerged from the COVID-19 

pandemic, the need for an economy driven by green economic development 
has become more apparent than ever. Only through sustainable investment in 
long-term clean energy businesses can we hope to stem the tide of decades of 
environmental devastation brought on by a much prolonged dependence on 
petroleum-based economies. The County Albany County Legislature 
determines that the County of Albany and its arms of municipal government 
can act as a promoter of this type of economic development and intends to 
commit significant resources to the development of green economic 
development projects across the County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the stated intention of the Albany County Legislature in the STAGE 

ACT is “to establish a Sustainable Technology and Green Energy Plan, which will 
invigorate and diversify the green business industry in the County of Albany for years to 
come and contribute to significant economic development, job retention, and 
development”; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to, and in accordance with the STAGE ACT, the 

Sustainable Technology & Green Energy Plan Rules and Regulations (“STAGE Plan”) 
was developed to: (1) address the climate protection goals codified by CLCPA; and (2) 
address the dual goals of creating economic opportunity and jobs for the residents of 
Albany County while decarbonizing the economy; and (3) further support Albany 
County’s Economic Development Strategy commissioned in 2019;  and  

 
WHEREAS, as part of the STAGE Plan, Advance Albany County Alliance Local 

Development Corporation (“AACA”) was identified by Albany County to administer and 



 
manage a grant program (“STAGE Act Grant Program”) with funds from Albany County 
to foster the development of green businesses in Albany County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as part of administering the STAGE Act Grant Program, AACA has 
developed and promulgated an application which can be completed/submitted by eligible 
green business applicants to AACA for review and potential approval by the AACA 
Board, and if such applications are approved by the AACA Board, such AACA approved 
applications are forwarded to the STAGE Committee for final review, approval and 
funding determination; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to STAGE Committee Resolution 2024-09-01 
unanimously approved by the STAGE Committee on September 26, 2024, STAGE Act 
Grant Program funding in the amount of $500,000 was authorized to be provided to Atlas 
Copco Comptec, LLC for a $40,000,000 project consisting of the renovation of an 
existing approx. 106K sq. ft. Facility & construction of a new approx. 51K sq. ft. Facility 
and related equipment for the manufacture of integrally geared centrifugal compressors to 
support carbon dioxide capture and storage at their plant in Voorheesville (“Original 
Project”) as detailed in Resolution 2024-09-01: 

 
1. Applicant:    Atlas Copco Comptec, LLC 

Grant Funds Requested:  $1,000,000 
Project:  Renovation of an existing approx. 

106K sq. ft. Facility & construction 
of a new approx. 51K sq. ft. Facility 
and related equipment to 
manufacture of integrally geared 
centrifugal compressors for carbon 
dioxide capture and storage 

Eligibility Category:  Industrial & Manufacturing Facilities 
Jobs Created:  55 jobs (27 professional, 23 skilled, 
   5 semi-skilled over 5 year 
   Period) 

 Jobs Retained:  35 jobs (27 professional, 7 skilled, 
   1 semi-skilled) 
 Investment in County:  $40,000,000 
 Reviewing Criteria Score:  17 points (out of 22 max) 
 Funding Level:    $500,000 

  
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 
Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”) and 
the regulations (the “Regulations”) adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of 
Environmental Conservation of the State of New York (collectively with the SEQR Act, 
“SEQRA”), the STAGE Committee pursuant to Resolution 2024-09-0, the STAGE 
Committee (A) concurred in the determination that the Village of Voorheesville (the 
“Village”) is the “lead agency” with respect to the Project and (B) acknowledged receipt 
of a negative declaration from the Village issued on July 30, 2024 (the “Negative 
Declaration”), in which the Village determined that the Original Project was a “Type 1” 
action (as  



 
such quoted term is defined in SEQRA) but that the Original Project constitutes an action 
which would not have a significant impact on the environment and, therefore, did not 
require preparation of a Draft Environmental Impact Statement; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant has informed the STAGE Committee that the Original 
Project has been modified in the following manner: (i) acquisition and installation of 
Solar Panels is being delayed resulting in an approx. $2 million reduction); (ii) equipment 
budget is reduced from approx. $11.1 million to $7.715 million largely due to a reduction 
in overhead cranes without affecting the ability to move their large compressors thru the 
manufacturing process; and (iii) not updating the office spaces resulting in an 
approximate $2 million reduction (total Original Project investment being reduced by 
approximately $7.385 million) (hereinafter the “Project”);  
 
 WHEREAS, the STAGE Committee based on the its present review of the 
Project and determination that the Project, as modified, is simply a reduction from the 
Original Project hereby confirms its determinations related to SEQRA adopted by the 
STAGE Committee pursuant to Resolution 2024-09-01 remain valid and no additional 
SEQRA determinations are necessary; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant remains committed to the same number of jobs 
created and retained in the Project as in the Original Project, and the Project comprises 
substantially the same “Green Business” attributes under the STAGE Rules and 
Regulations as the Original Project including but limited to the size of the facility’s high 
bay expansion, and has been scored against Program Criteria with a score of 17; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the STAGE Committee, after considering the Project as compared 
to the Original Project, now wishes to modify the amount of STAGE Grant Funds 
awarded; 
  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE MEMBERS OF THE 
STAGE COMMITTEE: 
 

STAGE PLAN PROJECT APPROVAL AND FUNDING DETERMINATION 
 

 (1) The STAGE Committee approves the Project, as modified from the Original 
Project. 

 
 (2) Based on the Project’s demonstrated ability to show deliverables on job 
creation/retention, level of investment, project viability, and consistency with the County 
Economic Development Priorities, the STAGE Committee determines that $475,000 of 
the STAGE Act funding authorized in the Albany County Budget be awarded to the 
applicant for the Project pursuant to and in accordance with the STAGE Plan, with such 
STAGE Act Grant Program funding to be administered by AACA in accordance with and 
pursuant to the STAGE Plan. 
  
Dated: July 11, 2025 
       
Motion made by:  
 
Seconded by:   



 
Voting Results 

 
Committee Member Vote 

(Yes/No) 
Commissioner of the Division of Management and Budget (or Designee)  
Albany County Comptroller (or Designee)  
Albany County Executive (or Designee)_______________  
Chairperson of the Conservation, Sustainability & Green Initiatives Committee 
of the Albany County Legislature_________________ 

 

Chairperson of the Economic Development Committee of the Albany County 
Legislature________________ 

 

 


	Part1SS1: 
	Part1SS2: Crane Stationary, corporate name Decree-Crane Special Papers N.A. LLC is relocating from Cohoes to Latham at 968 Albany Shaker Road, Latham
	Part1SS3: The proposed location is 968 Albany Chaker Road, Latham, NY
	Part1SS4: Crane Stationary is vacating an older manufacturing facility for a more energy efficient and modern manufacturing space in Latham, there is no work to be done outside of the current building foot print of the building they will occupy
	Part1SS5: Robert Buhler - CEO Crane Stationary
	Part1SS6: 970-481-5785
	Part1SS7: Robert@crane.com
	Part1SS8: 968 Albany Shaker Road
	Part1SS9: Latham
	Part1SS10: NY
	Part1SS11: 12110
	Part11: Yes
	Part 1: 
	2: 
	SS1: Town of Colonie Change of Tenant


	Part12: No
	Part13a: 34
	Part13b: 0
	Part13c: 34
	Part14SS1Urban: Off
	Part14SS4Rural: Off
	Part14SS5Agriculture: Off
	Part14SS6Industrial: Off
	Part14SS7Aquatic: Off
	Part14SS8Commercial: Yes
	Part14SS10Residential: Off
	Part14SS2Forest: Off
	Parkland: Off
	Part14SS9Other: Off
	Specify: 
	Part15a: Yes
	Part15b: Yes
	Part16: Yes
	Part17: No
	Part17SS1: 
	Part18a: No
	Part18b: Yes
	Part18c: Yes
	Part19: Yes
	Part19SS1: YES, LED Lighting, upgraded insulation, energy efficient HVAC system
	Part110: Yes
	Public/Private Water Supply: Colonie Pure Waters
	Part111: Yes
	Part111SS2: Town of Colonie Sewer
	Part112a: No
	Part112b: No
	Part112SS1:                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
	Part113a: No
	Part113b: No
	Part113bSS1: 
	Part114SS1Shoreline: Off
	Part114SS2Wetland: Off
	Part114SS3Forest: Off
	Part114SS4Urban: Off
	Part114SS5Agricultural: Off
	Part114SS6Suburban: Yes
	Part114SS7Early: Off
	Part115: No
	Part116: No
	Part117: No
	Part118: No
	Part117a: No
	Part117b: No
	Part119: no
	Part120: No
	Part117bSS1: 
	Part118SS1: 
	Part119SS1: 
	Part120SS1: 
	Part1Applicant Name: Kevin Catalano
	Part1Date: 5/16/2025
	Part1Signature: 
	Part1Title:     SVP  
	Print Form: 
	Name of Project: 
	Date of Project: 
	Part 2 1: No
	Part 2 2: No
	Part 2 3: No
	Part 2 4: No
	Part 2 5: No
	Part 2 6: No
	Part 6: Off
	Part 2 7a: No
	Part 2 7b: No
	Part 2 8: No
	Part 2 9: No
	Part 2 10: No
	Part 2 11: No
	Print 1: 
	Part 3: Yes
	Part 3 Determination of Significance: Crane Stationary will be occupying an existing building that Plug Power is vacating, Crane will not be disturbing the footprint of the building or the surrounding property. 



Based on en examination of the action, which involves moving into and fitting up an existing structure in a manner and for a use authorized use by the existing zoning, the action constitutes a "Type II action" pursuant to 6 NYCRR617.5(c)(2), (18) and / or (31).
	Name of Lead Agency: Advance Albany County Alliance, LDC
	Date for Part 3: 5/16/2025
	print of Type Name of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: Kevin Catalano
	Title of Responsible Officer:    SVP
	Signature of Responisible Officer in Lead Agency: 
	Signature of Preparer (If different from Responsible Officer): 
	Project 3: 
	Date 3: 
	Print 2: 


